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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Dear Members,

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

The Board of Director of the Company are pleased to present the 8" Director’s Report on business and
operations of DMI Housing Finance Private Limited (“DMI HFC”) your Company along with the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(2 in Million)
 Particulars B March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
“Income from%perationis._ ) ) 427.50 159.00
Other Income - 1.61
Total Income 427.50 160.62
Total Expenditure 398.97 170.22
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation B 28.54 (9.59)
| Tax Expenses/(Credits) 13.00 2.97
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 15.54 (12.56)
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - E
Transfer to Reserve Fund u/s Sec 29C of NHB Act, 1987 15.36 4,51
Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet (19.85) (24.59)

Note- In accordance with the directions from Ministiy of Corporate Affairs, the Company being a Housing Finance
Company has changed its accounting practice wherein Indian Accownting Standards (IND AS) is adopted in place of
IGAAP. Accordingly, the accouniing policies have been amended and its effect on the profit and reserves of the
company is shown in the financial statements i.e. Balance Sheet along with Profit & Loss Account for March 31, 2019
and appropriate adjustments have been made in the previous vear financials to incorporate the effect of revised
accounting standards.

PORTFOLIO GROWTH AND ASSET QUALITY

Loan Portfolio & Net Owned Funds

The portfolio of the company has grown exponentially from Z 1,717.26 Million as on March 31,2018 to 2
4,354.98 Million s as on March 31, 2019 thereby showing a sustainable growth ip slow and slur economic
environment, The portfolio of the company has grown exponentially by approximately 154%.

The Net owned funds of the Company were at T 5,294.91 Million as on March 31, 2019 whereas the same
stood at T [,145.12 Million as on March 3(, 2018.
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NPA Levels

The company has established strong risk management procedures which can be demonstrated with NPA
levels of the company which have been significantly low since its inception.

Gross NPA level stood at 0.09% and Net NPA stood at 0.05% as on March 31, 2019.
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR)

The company is maintaining a healthy CRAR of 132.28% which is higher than the prescribed minimum
CRAR as per Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 as amended from time to time. Below
mentioned are the details of CRAR of Tier I and Tier 1T Capital.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
() CRAR (%) 132.28% 11386%

(i) CRAR — Tier | Capital (%) 131.79% 1331%
(iii) CRAR — Tier II Capital (%) B 0.49% 0.55%

Dividend

In order to conserve its cash resources for future growth of the Company, the Board does not recommend
any interim/final dividend during the year under review.

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO RESERVES

The break-up of the amounts/profits proposed to be carried to reserves for FY 2018-19, is set out herein

below: (T in Million)
Particulars - - - March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve B - -
Transfer to Reserve Fund /s Sec 29C of NHB Act, 1987 15.36 | 4.51
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STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

Share Capital

During FY 2018-19, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company underwent following
changes.

1. Change in Authorised Share Capital

During the year under review, the authorised share capital of the Company underwent following
changes:

S. No. | Date of Approval | From To Division

1. April 26, 2018 115 Crores | 130 Crores 2,50,00,000 equity shares of T 10
each and 10,50,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares of Z 10 each.

2. June 22,2018 130 Crores | 150 Crores 2,50,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10
each and 12,50,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible
- Preference Shares of T 10 each

3. July 29, 2018 150 Crores | 165 Crores 2,50,00,000 equity shares of 2 10
each and 14,00,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible
o Preference Shares of T 10 each

4. November 13, 2018 | 165 Crores | 1,000 Crores | 86,00,00,000 equity shares of 2 10
each and 14,00,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares of Z 10 each

2. Change in Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital

a) Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

S. No. | Date of Allotment | Number of CCPS allotted Change in paid-up capital

I. | April 27,2018 1,02,61,194 Increased from 2 1,06,77,26,120 to
?1,17,03,38,060

2. | June 01, 2018 60,63,432 Increased from ¥ 1,17,03,38,060 to
?1,23,09,72,380

3. | June 29, 2018 2,04,65,115 Increased from ¥ 1,23,09,72,380 to
2 1,43,56,23,530

4. | July 30,2018 11,162,790 Increased from ¥ 1,43,56,23,530 to
¥ 1,547,251,430
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b) Issuance of Equity Shares

'S. No. | Date of Allotment | Number of shares allotted Change in paid-up capital

1. | November 13, 2018 62,422 Increased from 2 1,54,72,51,430 to
(Class A equity shares) Z1,54,78,75,650
2. | December 20, 2018 32,77.51,601 Increased from T 1,54,78,75,650 to

% 4,82,53,91,660

¢) Conversion of CCPS into equity shares

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of issue of CCPS, 13,56,94,560 CCPS were converted into equity
shares at the conversion ratio 1:1 of conversion price of Rs 10.93 per share. Further owing to such
conversion of CCPS into equity shares, there was no change in the paid-up capital of the Company.

d) Change in Shareholding

Further, during the year under review, the company has received approval from the National Housing
Bank vide letter dated September 03, 2018, for transfer of shareholding of the company from DMI
Finance Private Limited to DMI Limited.

Post receipt of approval from the regulator, DMI Finance Private Limited (“Equity & CCPS Holder™)
transferred its shareholding to DMI Limited (Non-Resident transferee), in compliance with the FEMA
regulations.

On Dec 20, 2018 DMI Limited, had infused ¥ 3582.33 Million in the company by way of subscribing
equity shares issued by the company. As a result of the same the shareholding of the company increased
exponentially and DMI Limited became the Holding Company of the company.

As on March 31, 2019, DMI Finance Private Limited transferred 1,21,69,788 equity shares and
11,38,02,652 CCPS held by them to DMI Limited, resulting reduction in the shareholding of DMI
Finance Private Limited to 5.02%. As a result, DMI Finance Private Limited, ceased to be the Holding
Company of the company.

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board Compositicn

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(“Act™) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the National Housing Bank and other
applicable laws. During the year under review, the composition of the Board remains unchanged and the
details in this regard have been provided under the title Corporate Governance.

Director(s) Disclosure
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Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act,
circulars, notifications and directions issued by National Housing Bank and other applicable laws, none of
the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Compary.
Human Resource

The goal is to employ highly talented people who are fully engaged in our business and who deliver high
levels of performance at work. The Human Resource continues to support the business in achieving
sustainable and responsible growth by building the right capabilities in the organization. It continues to
focus on progressive employee relations, creating an inclusive work culture and a strong talent pipeline.
The Company firmly believes that employee motivation, development and engagement are key aspects of
good human resource management.

During the financial year company has hired many experienced and senior level employees from the
industry, so that they can help in achieving the company’s goal. As on March 31, 2019 total number of
employees of the company stood at 367 as compared to March 31, 2018, where the number of employees
of the company were on 61,

Vartous training programs were organized at Head office and branch level for the employees to impart
training on the products and policies of the company.

Further, the company has been using employee portal and regularly the same is improved and evolved based
on the growing needs of the company.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

The company do not have any subsidiary or associate company as on March 31, 2019.

CREDIT RATING

During the Financial Year 2018-19, the company obtained credit rating from Brickwork Ratings India
Private Limited on October 29, 2018 and October 30, 2018. The details of the same are given below:

; Type of Borrowing Rating Agency Amount Rating
| (T in Million)
| Non-Convertible Debentures | Brickwork Ratings India B 1,000 | BWR AA;; Stable
Private Limited
Long Term Bank Borrowing | Brickwork Ratings India 1,000 BWR AA-; Stable
Private Limited

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
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The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on Board
and General meetings. The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the secretarial
standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RELATED MATTERS

Deposits

DMI HFC is a Non-deposit accepting housing finance company registered with national Housing Bank.
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor it has accepted any public
deposits during the year under review,

Pursuant to the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions 2010, and various circulars issued by NHB
from time to time, the Board of Directors of the company had passed a resolution on April 09, 2019
confirming that the company will neither hold nor accept any “Public Deposits” as defined by NHB, during
the financial year from April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2019,

Others’ Employees Appointment and Remuneration
Other employees” appointment and remuneration is as per the HR policy of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statement
relates (i.e. March 31, 2019) and the date of this report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN, 2018

Human Resources are key to the growth and success of an organization, more so in financial services
industry. Itis therefore imperative to align the interests of the employees and shareholders of the Company.
Employee Stock Option schemes have been universally accepted as retention and wealth creation tool that
meets this objective. To attract, retain, motivate and incentivize the employees at all levels, your Board and
Shareholders had approved DMI Employee Stock Option Plan — 2018 to issue stock options not exceeding
5% of the Fully Diluted Equity Capital of the Company as on the Option Grant Date.

43,40,872 fresh options were granted; however, nil stock options are vested and exercised as on March 31,
2019.

The disclosures required as per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 is
attached as Annexure-A

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 10 (Ten) times during the financial year 2018-19 on below mentioned dates. The intervening
gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
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.No. Date of Board Meeting ]
April 26,2018

May 14, 2018

May 31, 2018

June 14,2018

| June 22, 2018

July 27, 2018
Se_ptem ber 24, 2018
November 01, 2018
December 07, 2018
0. February 07, 201?

S oo || ey —

Further, in accordance with Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1 on “Meetings of the Board of
Directors™, the details on the number of meetings attended by each Director during financial year 2018-
2019 is given below:

Name of the Directors Category | Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2018-19
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Director -~ 10 10 8
Mr. Gaurav Burman ' Director 10 [0 7
Mt. Shivashish Chatterjee Director 10 10 10 |
Mr. Yuvraja Chané]iya Singh Director 10 10 10

During the year under review there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable
laws and statutes. There are 6 Committees constituted by the Board namely Audit Committee, Loan
Investment and Borrowing Committee, Risk Management Comumittee, Nomination Committee, Asset
Liability Committee, Securities Allotment Committee.

The composition of these Committees as on March 31, 2019 is provided below. Further, in accordance with
Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard-1 on “Meetings of the Board of Directors”, the details on the number
and dates of meetings of the Committees held during the financial year 2018-19 indicating number of
meetings attended by each Committee Member is given below:

¥ Audit Committee (AC)
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Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19 viz. on June 14, 2018,
September 24, 2018, December 07, 2018 and February 07, 2019. The attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of the Members ' Category Number of meetings held during_
the financial year 2018-19

Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 4 4 2
Mr. Gaurav Burtnian - Member k 4 4 2
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 4 4 4
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 4 4 4

» Loan, Investment and Borrowing Committee (LIBC)

One Loan/Investment and Borrowing Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19
viz. on November 13, 2018. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members C;tegory | Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2018-19
Held | Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 1 1 1
Mr. Gavrav Burman ) Member o 1 [ 1
M. Jatinder Bhasin ' Member 1 ! 1
“Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee - Member 1 | 1
Mr. Sahib Pahwa Member ] 1 r
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 1 1 |

# Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Four Risk Management Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19 viz, on June 14,
2018, September 24, 2018, December 07, 2018 and February 07, 2019. The attendance of the members is

as follows:
Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during |
the financial year 2018-19
Held | Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 4 4 2
Mr. Gaurav Burman Member 4 4 2
Mr. Rajul Bhargava Member 4 4 4
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 4 4 4
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh ' Member 4 4 4
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» Nomination Committee

Two Nomination Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19 viz. on April 01, 2018
and October 01, 2018, The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members* Category Number of rﬁeetings held during
the financial year 2018-19
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 2 2 2
Mr, Gaurav Burman ) Member 2 2 2
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 2 2 2
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 2 2 2

¥ Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

Three ALCO Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19 viz. on June 15, 2018,
September 24, 2018 and November 11, 2018. The attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2018-19

Held Entitled | Attended
Mt, Tammir Amr Member 3 3 3
“Mr. Gauray Burman Member 3 3 3
Mr. Jatinder Bhasin Member 3 3 3
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 3 3 3
Mr. Sahib Pahwa Member 3 3 3
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 3 3 3

Security Allotment Commitiee

Nine Securities Allotment Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-190on below

mentioned dates.

¥ ]

. No. | Date of Committee Meeting

April 27, 2018

June 01, 2018

June 29,2018

July 30,2018

November 13, 2018

November 22, 2018

December 20,2018

-

January 15, 2019
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9. [ March 11,2019

The attendance of the members is as follows:

(ﬁame of the Members Category Number of meetings held during
the financial year 2018-19
Held Entitled | Attended
Mr. Tammir Amr Member 9 9 9
| Mr. Gauray Burman Member 9 9 9
Mr. Jatinder Bhasin Member 9 9 9
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Member 9 9 9
| Mr. Sahib Pahwa Member 9 9 9
Mr, Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Member 9 9 9

These Committees function as per the terms of reference as approved by the Board for the respective

Committees and as mentioned in the Corporate Governance Policy,

General Meetings

Annual General Meeting

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2018 was held on September 24, 2018,

Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s)

During the year under review, 7 Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s) (EGM) of the Company were held
during the financial year 2018-19. The Members accorded their approval in the requisite manner for the

matters taken in the respective EGMs.

S. No. Date of Board Meeting
. April 26, 2018
2. May 31,2018
3. June 22, 2018
4 July 27, 2018
5. September 25, 2018
6, November 13, 2018

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company has not achieved any of the threshold limit of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, therefore
company has not undertaken any CSR activity during the year under review.

Particulars of Investments Loans and Guarantees
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The Company being a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB)
primarily engaged in the business of providing Housing Loans exempted from provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”). Accordingly, there are no details of particulars of loans, guarantees or
investments that are required to be provided as per Section 134(3) (g) of the Act.

Related Party Transactions

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Housing Finance Companies —
(NHB) Directions, 2010, (as amended from time to time), the Company has put in place a Board approved
Related Party Transaction Policy (“RPT Policy”) for the purpose of obtaining requisite approval and
reporting transactions with related parties.

The details of all transactions with related parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements of
the Company.

Regulatory Disclosures on Related Party Transactions required under Housing Finance Companies —
Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions 2016, are as follows:

a) The details on all material Related Party Transactions of the Company, identified as pet the Company’s
Policy on Related Party Transactions framed pursuant to the Housing Finance Com panies — Corporate
Governance (NHB) Directions 2016 are provided in Form AOC-2 prescribed under clause (h) of sub-
section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached
as Annexure-B,

b) The Company has policy in place on dealing with Related Party Transactions and the policy may be
accessed on the Company’s website at the link:

hitps://www.dmihousingfinance.in/related-party-transaction-policy.html

These transactions were at an arms-length and in the ordinary course of business.

Risk Management Policy

In accordance with Housing Finance Companies — (NHB) Directions, 2010 as amended from time to time,
the Company has Board approved Risk Management Policy. The Board constituted Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee responsible for monitoring the progress of the Risk Control Matrix and
loan portfolio and to establish standards to mitigate risks related operations, credit, compliance, finance.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company to the best
of their knowledge and ability, confirms that-
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a. in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

¢. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has adequate internal controls to monitor its operations. The management of the company
overlooks the internal control mechanism and adequacy. Further, the statutory auditors of the com pany also
check the internal controls at the end of every financial year.

Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption

Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has been highly
conscious of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absotption at all operational levels
and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. In view of the nature of activities which are
being carried on by the Company, the particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption are not applicable to the Company and hence not been provided.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not
required to be furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year
under review. The details of foreign exchange expenditure incurred and foreign exchange earned during
the year under review are as below:

Earnings: NIL
QOutgo: NIL

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals
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No significant and material orders were passed by the RBI, regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Disclosure of Remuneration and Particulars of Employees

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contribution made by ail employees,
who through their competence, dedication, hard work, co-operation and support have enabled the Com pany
to achieve new milestones on a continual basis.

In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key
Managetial Personnel and employees of the Company have been provided at Annexure C to this Board’s
Report.

Statement containing details of employees as required in terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule
5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours for a period
of 21 days before the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting, A copy of the statement may be obtained
by shareholders by writing to the Company Secretary at the Registered of the Company.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

In terms of the requirement of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting
of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014, the Company has formulated a codified vigil mechanism for their
Directors and Employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances about unethical and improper
practices or any other wrongful conduct in the Company, without fear of punishment, victimization or unfair
treatment.

The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees and Directors who
avail of the vigil mechanism and provide direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate or exceptional cases. Also, the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company has been put up on the
Company’s website and available at the [ink:

During the year, no complaint was received under the Whistle Blower mechanism and the same was
reported to the Audit Committee Meeting.

Statutory Auditors

S.R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP Chartered Accountants, Gurugram, Firm Registration No. 101049W were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) years subject to
ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.
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However, in accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on May 07, 2018 by Ministty
of Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual
General Meeting,

Auditor’s Observation

The Directors have examined the Auditors’ Report on accounts for the period ended March 31, 2019. The
Auditors’ Report along with the relevant disclosures is self-explanatory and has no quallﬂcatlon or adverse
remarks.

Extracts of Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return for Financial Year 2018-19 is attached to the Board’s Report as Annexure-D
in accordance with Sub-Section (3) of Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed therein.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Cpinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DMI Housing Finance Private Limited ("the

- Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Inceme, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information.

In our epinion and to the best of our informatian and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinian

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accardance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitizs in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's Report hut does not include the Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor's responsibility in relation to other
information in documents containing audited financial statements.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
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Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wers operating
effectively tor ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are fres
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstaternent resutting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may
invalve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(0) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern hasis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as agoing
concern.

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that ma

Report

1. As
Go

y reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
vernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the “Annexure 1"

a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As

(a)

(b}

(3]

(d)

(e)

€]

-

(g

(hy

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our apinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexura 2" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

il There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reagistration Mumber: 101049W/E300004

_Sort VCSL L)ah' t‘).

per Sarvesh Warty

Partner

Membership Number: 121411

Mumbai

May 24,

2019
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Annexure 1 referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirernents” of our report of even date

Re: DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

(i} {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assefs.

(b} All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the yvear but thereis a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Mo material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3()c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(iii)a), (b) and (c} of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

{iv) In our epinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investrnents, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

[{0)] The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

{vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost recards under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

{vii) (a} Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues have not generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect of provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at
the year end, for a peried of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:

I ]
Mame of the statute Nature of | Amount Periad to which the F
dues amount relates !
i
- | The Gujarat, Panchayats, Municipalities, | Professional 16,280 August 17 to | .
[ Municipal Corporation and State Tax on | Tax September 18

Profession, Traders Callings and |

| Employments Act, 1976 |

i T |
i Madhya Pradesh Vritti Kar Adhiniyam, | Professional 24,065 August 17 to |

The Maharashtra State Tax on | Professional 28,225 May 17 to September ‘

Professions, Trades, Callings and | Tax 18
Employments Act, 1975
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(viii2

@ix)

(€8]

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

For S.R.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were
gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the
officers and empleyees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schadule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upan.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therafore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Qrder are not applicable te the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied
with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or
private placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

50\1'\!65\'\ LJCI v t‘J'

per Sarvesh Warty

Partner

Membership Mo, 121411

Mumbai

May 24, 2012
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’ of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DMI Housing Finance Private
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statemants of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financiai reporting criteria established by the Campany considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busipess, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detaction of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controfs system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinicn on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internai financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide reascnable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controt over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) perfain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance wuth generally accepted a\.countmg
prmmp d that receipts and expenditures of the company are

prevention ar timehfI detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effact on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
passibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
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fraud may occur and not be detectad. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate becauss of changes in conditions, or that the deqgree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our epinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial repaorting were operating effectively as
atMarch 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 5.R. BATLIBOI & ASSQCIATES LLP
ICAl Firm registration number: 101042W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

Sa\Tv 85}\ Uﬂn 'k-,_

per Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership Ne. 121411

Mumbai
May 24, 2019
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Statement of profit and loss for the year pnded March 31, 2019
[AH amount in fs. in millians, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Pt Totes For the yrar March 31, For the year March 33,
L 019 2018
Revenus lram operations
Interest Incarme 18 5054 4
Fores and cammlssian Income 19 3440 13,94
Nt gain o faif value charges L] ALUS L7
Tatal revenue from operatlans AI7.50 152.00
Cthar incame b £ 151
Tatal Inzoma N 427.50 _IEDAZ
Exprnses
Tinance Cosls i A apaz
Impairment an linancal mstruments Fal 12400 4.1
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]
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Tax Expenze:
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D01 Hoewsing Finance Private Limited
Statamant of changes In equity for the year ended March 11, 2018
{All amount In /5, In milllons, excapt for share data unless stated otherwise)

to. of Shares
.. \LROOS 74
ik 24,5837
L8030, 585
L ABAAPLIEY L
48,25368,166 |

313014 feuk

orcnged March L0 lforvogn iy,

b. 0| it g S i
Particulars Equily G Resorve & Surplus Total
Campulsarily Lacuritos Spacial Roserve Shivee Basad | Rotained Earnings
[ ! f s 35T of Fay
Preference Shired Azenunt the income Tax Resorve
SOPLL [ E—— A, 3981
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| Bt for the yasr - : : 1158
[Gthys Comtehansive income et L T ) R : L
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Al o o
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15hases

(alid: ddisring this year 6o Atcount of Employes Share . - 574 - 5.74
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DI Hausing Finance Private Limited
Notes toa financial statements for the year ended 31° WMarch 2019

: ) Corporate information
Dl Housing Finance Private Limited {"the Company’) is a company domiciled in India 25 a private limited company, The company is
registered with the National Housing Bank {'NHE') as a housing finance company.

The Company is mainly engaged in the busingss of providing housing loans.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared inaccordance with indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) notified
undar the Companias (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 {as amended from tme to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards natified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
[Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP or previous GAAP), These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with ind AS. Refer to nate [28] for information on how the Company adopted IndAs.

The standalane financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held for trading, which have
been measured at fair value.

2.1Pr jon of financial &

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of fiquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settiement more than 12 months after the
reparting date is presented in note {35]. Financial assets and financial labilitics are generally reported gross in the balance sheet, They are
only offset and reported nat when, in addition to having an unconditicnal legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without
being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circurnstances:

Al The normal course of business

B. The event of default

[+ The event of inselvency or bankruptey of the Company and/for its counterparties
3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Use of significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's gest knawledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these 2ssumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring 2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods. Following are the judgements, estimates and assumptions used which have a significant risk of
causing a materfal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.

A, Impalrment loss on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categerles of financial assets except assets valued at fair value through profit & foss
{FVTPL} , requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
thanges In which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding
the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and
estimates include:

* The Company’s modal, which assigns Probability of Defaults (PDs)

» The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant inzrease in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be
measured on a Lang Term ECL{LTECL) basis

= The segmentation of financial assats when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

+ Development of ECL meodels, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

W

Classification and measurament of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The Company
ines the business modei ata Ie\.rel that reflects haw groups of Financia! asscts are manag»d togcther;(p,acﬁiéﬁéf' 1 .ic.ﬁar businass

kf;rm Lo {hz:lr
uf the ;::ress for which
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finanicial assets arz held continues to be approprate and if it is not appropriate whether there has bean a change in busiress model and
s0 & prospective change to the classification of those assets.

€. Defined employes benefit assets and liabilitics

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity chbligation are
determined using sctuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that ray differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discourt rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefic obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

0. Share Based Payments

Estimating fair value for share-based psyment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
waluation modelintluding the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

E. Fairvalue measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities racorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
In active markets, their falr value is measured using valuation technigues Including the DCF model. The inputs ta these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgemant is reguired in establishing fair values,
ludgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect tha reported fair value of financial instruments.

F.  Effective interest rate method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected behaviaural life of loans and recognises the effect of potentially different interast rates charged at various stages
ant ether characteristics of the product life cycle. This estimation, by nature, requiras an element of judgement regarding the expectad
behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to the company’s base rate and other fee income/fexpense that ars
integral parts of the instrument.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less than three months held
with bank, debit balance in cash credit account.

3.3 Recognition of income and expense

al Interest income

The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenue can ba reliably measured. Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method
{EIR]. The effective interest method caiculates the amortized cast of a financial instrumant and 2llecates the interest income., The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financal instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liabiiity, The calculation takes into account
all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for exarmnple, prepayment ogtions) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are
diractly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses,

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIf to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than cradit-impaired
assets. When a financial asset bacomes credit-impsired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3%, the Company calculates the intarest to
the extent recovarable. If tha financial asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income.

b} Interest expense

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recopnized as part of the carrying value of the financiai llability and amartized ousr
the expected life using the effective Interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and ather expenses such
as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs thatare directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

¢} Other charges and other interest

Overdue interest is recognized on realization basis.

d) Dividendincome - 2 /t\/éy
Dividend income is recopnized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, it is probable _Lpﬂiu_c_p’:’a mic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when
sharehcldars approve the dividend. i
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3.4 Property, plant and equipment [PPE) and Intangible assets

On transition to lag¢ AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets as at 31 March 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as on 1st April 2017,

BPF are stated ot cost {including incidental expanses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its workiag condition for its intended use)
less accumulated depreciauon and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use, Subsequent expenditure releted to PPE is capitalized only when itis probable that future
acanomic benefits associated with these will flow 1 the Company and the tost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset [ralculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the statemant of profit and joss, wiven the assetis
derecognized.

Intongible fixed assets

Intangible assats acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortization and accurnulated impairment losses.

3.5 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Deprediation is provided cver the useful life of the asset as per Schedule-ll of Companies Act 2013 and depreciation rates have been
werked out by applying written down value method, The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on
its PPE.

if
— Useful Life (in
Years)
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers and printers 3

Leasehold improvements and are amortized on a straight-line basis over useful life of 3 to 6 years estimated by management.
Estimated iife of scftware has been estimated as five years.

All fixed assets individually costing Rs. 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of installation/purchase.

Amartization

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis over the sstimated useful economic life. The Company uses arebuttadle presumption
that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed four years from the date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive
evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds four years, the Campany amortizes the Intangible asset over the
best estimate of its useful life.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets =

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there (s any indication of impairment basad on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the assets, nat selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent markat transactions are taken into account, If avai big:
transactinns can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
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3.7 Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A pravision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past evants and it is prohable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made, Provisions (exciuding retirement
benefits) are nat discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. Contingent liability is disclased for {1} Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future avents not whelly
within the control of the Compzny or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resourees
witl be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made, Contingant Assels are not
recognised in the financial statarents.

3.8 Retirement and other employes benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined cantribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable ta the providen: fund and Employee State Insurance scheme, The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund as an expense, when an employee renders the ralated service. If the contritiution payable to the scheme for service
received befare the balance shee: date excaeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as 3 liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. I the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services receiverd
befera the halance sheet date, then excess is recognized 25 an asset 1o the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund. .

Tne Company provides gratuity benefits which is a defined benefil scheme. The cost of praviding gratuity benefits is determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation at each year end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit creditmethod.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset celling, excluding amounts included in net intarest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts includad in net interest an the net defined banefic
liabifity], are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a carrespending debit or credit to retained sarnings through GCI in the
period in which they oceur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseqguent periods.

3.9 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and defarrad tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the ampunt expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1561, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other apolicable tax |aws, The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lass leither in other comprenhensive inceme or in equity) is recagnised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCH or directly in equity.

Beferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liabifity method on temperary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reparting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for 2ll deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised Lo the extent that it is probatie that taxaple profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availsbie to allow all or part of the deferred tax asses to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are re-assessed ot each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will alfow the deferred tax assct to be recaverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the year when the asset 5 realised or the
liznility is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside orofit or loss 1s recognised cutside prafit or loss [either inlgther tormprehiensive
JSRERSNE it equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in carrelation to the underlying transaction either in OC or difecthin equity.

—_ s SO\

assets and deferred tax lisbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assers against current tax

# the deferred taxes relate 10 the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity, S NEW g raj e

R
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3.10 Earning per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shaceholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the

extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relalive to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of caiculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the pericd are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.11 Share based payments

Equity-settlea share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Company's estimate of equity mstruments that will eventually vest, with acorresponding increase in equity.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company ravises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Seserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

3.12 Financial instruments

& financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument
of another entity.

3.12.1 Financlol Assets

3.12.1.1 Initlal recognition and ement

Financial assets are initially recognised on the date that the Company becames a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management's intention
when acquiring thern, All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through praofit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.12.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

« lLoan portfolio at amoertized cost

= Debtinstruments at amortized cost V
e Investmentin mutual funds and security receipts at fair value through profit and loss account.

e  Other financial asset amortized cost

3.12.1.3 Loan portfolio ot emortized costs

A loan portfolia’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

@ The asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
_Contractual terms of the asset give rise on spacified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.

Business rnodel: The businass model reflacts how the Company manages the assets in order to genarate cash flows. That is, where the
Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is measurad atamartized cost or where the

fair value through other comgrehensive income (FYTOCI, If neither of these is applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FUTPL.

. SPPI: Where the husln%s modelis ta hild assets to collect contractual cash flows li.e. measurec. af amortizerj cost), the Company assesses
i {thz SPPI test’). In making this
pent, the Company considers wheather the contractual cesh flows are consistent with g}basﬂ: 'and‘ﬁrmngement i.e. interest
Al cnlv consideration for the time value cf monay, crccilt risk, other basic lendmg risky a‘i‘d/ 3 profit :na\é_ infihat ls consistenl witha
; that arg meopivgipnt with 2 basic lending

. the reEatM ‘Inancral assnt is classifiad and measured at far value through pr{it tor loss. ‘}ﬁaa' of'ﬁ.ed cost, as mentioned
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After Initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
less impairment, Amortised cost is caleulated by taking nto account any discount or premium an acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

7.15.1.4 Loan portfolio at FYOC!

Aloan portfolia’ is classified as at the FV10CTf both of the following criteria are mer:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value changes relating to market
movaments selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash fiows represent SPPI.

Loan portfolio included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recegnizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
Ioss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from the equity to statement of Profit & Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOC! debs
instrument is regorted as interest income using the EIR method,

3.12.1.5 Mutual funds

Mutual funds included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ali changes recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

3.12.2 Financiol Liabilities

3.12.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial lability is classified as at FVTPL if it s classified as
held-for trading or it is designated as an initial recognition. All financial liabifities are recognized inltially at fair value and, in the case of

leans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

3.12.2.2 Logns and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing luans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognisad in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation procass.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking inte account any discount er premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included as finance tosts in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrawings.

3.12.2.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doasn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the acquires, disposes of, or lerminates a business line. Financial Kabilities are never reclassified,

3.12.2.4 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an axisting linancial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an sxisting liability are substarzially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original lizbility and the recognition of a new liability, The
difference between the carrying value of the ariginal financial lizbility and the consideration paid is recognised in prafit or loss.

313 Impairment of financial assets

3.13.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Campany is recording the allowance for expected credit osses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FYTPL, togsther

N
fowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the '[«;1 e expected credit loss or LTECL),
ygre has been no significant increase in credis risk since origination, in whlch casg; tlwz ai.sdw.; weis based on the 12 months’
credit foss (12mECL) as outlined in Note 3.13.2), ¥ 4
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The 1ZmECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date,

Bath LTECLs and 12mECls are calculated on individual and collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portiolia
af finarcial instrument.

The Comgany has established a policy to perform an assessment, ot the end of each reporting pericd, of whether a financia!
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans inta Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans alsc include
facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Staga 3.

Stage 1: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an allowance
for the LTECLs. Stage 2 Ioans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage
3.

5tage 3: Loans considered credit-inpaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

3.13.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on 5 prabability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due ta an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects ta receive,

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are cutlined below and the key elements are, as fallows:

= PD-The Probabiiity of Defoult is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may
only happen at 2 certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolia.

= EAD- The Fxposure at Default is an exposure at a default date.

& LGD-The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the cose where a default accurs ata given time. it is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral. Itis usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD,

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrumant,

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on 2 financial
instrument that are possible within the 1Z months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based
on the expectation of a default occutring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default
probabilities are spplied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance
for the LTECLS. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the
instrument,

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is similar to that for Stege 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the
toan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECLIs then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls
in cash flows if the foan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted a1 an approximation to the expected EIR on the

4]

3.2 Forward locking informaticn 54
N -u-:’b/
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurrh'tg"}_% the ecodomy and market
itoperatesin, On a perindic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key sconormic trends like GDD, Unemployment
rates, Benchimark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined hy the Company based on
its interpal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGO rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships,
temporary overlays are embedded in the methadelogy to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.
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3.13.4 Collateral repossessed

Inits normal course of business, the company physically repessess properties or ether assets in its cetail portfolio, but ge nerally engages
external or internal agents to recover funds generally at auctions to settla outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customersfobligors. As a result of this practice, the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the
balance shaet and are treated as assets held for sale at (i) fair value less cost ta sell ar {ii) principle outstanding, whichever is less, at the
repossession date. %

3.13.5 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off sither partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.
If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the
allowance that is then applied apainst the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profitand loss account.

3.14 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or pald to transter a liability, in an orderly transacticn
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Campany's accounting policies require, measurament of certain financial / non-financial assets and labilities at falr values leither on
3 recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair valuss of financia! instruments measured at amortized cost are requirad to be disclosed
in the said financial statements.

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various valuation techniques.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liabilities, either measured or
disclosed at fair valug in the financial statements, using a three level fair-valua-hierarchy {which reflacts the significance of inputs used in
the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriake in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is avaiiable
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant chservable inputs and minimizing tha use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy described as follows:

*  Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unacjusted quoted prices l[rom active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date, The Company considers markets as active
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when
there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

e Level 2 financial Instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrumnent’s life.

»  Level 3 financial instruments - include one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity for the asset/liability
at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whele,

3.15 Dividend Paid

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders whan the distribution Is autharised and the distrbution is
ne longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date cf approval by the shareholders
and interim dividends are recorded as 2 liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.16 Functional and presentation currency
The Cempany’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spet rates at the gate the
transaction first qualifies for recognitien.

Foroign currency denominated mionetary assets and labilities are translated ar the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on setdement and restaterment are recogmzed in ﬂ-e statement of profitand loss.

eicﬁanse rates at 1he dales
2] transactions. Nen-monetary |‘tems measured at fairvalue in 5 farmgn currency are traré]htpd usmg the exchange rates at the
be fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary Il(‘zﬁi ,fl'}"rib‘llﬂfd it F\m‘ value js treated in
irecognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the ftem [Le., translation différentes on 1!9:;; whose lair value
\# recognized in OCHor grofit or loss are also recognized in OCI o7 profit ar loss, respecti e‘y) A ‘y
v,




ol Houslng Finance Private Limited
Motas to the Faancal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amaunt in Rs, in millions, except far share data uniess stated ntherwise)

2 Cash and cesh eguivalants

Particulars Asat March3l, 2018 Asat Mareh 31,2018 As at Aprll 01, 2017
Cazh and cash equivalents
Cashoon hand (1B ) 0o g0
Batarce with banks
In Current accounts 818,77 AIGL 54,07
514.94 110,63 24.08
Total 518.04 —_ HAie3 93,04

B
W DELEY




DM Housing Finance Private Limited
fiates to the Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Allamount In Rs. in millions, except for share data uniess stated otherwiss)

3 toans

At amortosed cost As al March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April D1, 2017
Term Loan 4,205,772 1LH9A 99 (3005
Total {4) Gross 4,200.72 1,695.99 636005
Less: Impalrmient loas allowanee 14.36 603 151
Total (A} Mot 4,155.36 1,692.96 528.24
Srgured by tangible 3ssets and intangible assets 4,203.72 1E98.55 63005
Covered by Rank/Sovernment Guarantess
Urgagured
Total [B] Gross 4,208,722 169893 E30.05
Less: Impairment 1oss allowanze 14,36 603 1,?1-.
Total {8) Net 4,195.35 1,532,596 iR
Loans in india
Publlic Secter - 3 -
Cihers 430972 153899 63005
Total {C} Gross 4,209.72 1,633.99 630.05
Less: impaitmuent loss alkowance 14 34 603 181
Total (C-1) Met 4,195.35 1,692.96 628,25
Loans outslde India * i -
Less: Impairment lass allowance - =
Taral (C-N} Net = 2 z
Tatal [C-1) and {C-)1) 4,195.36 1,682,96 £28.23

i3} Loans granted by the Company are secured by eg
pursanal guaranteas and/or hyaothecation of assers.

3b) Leans 4anctioned but un-disbursed smeunt s its. 1038.29 mmas on March 31, 2019 (2018 #5. 332.28 mm, 2017-R3, 16280 mm)

3ol
e morigage/ regl

mortgage of the property andfor undertaking to create 3 securlty and/or

3e} The fempany has granted cerminloans to staff amouating 1o M5, 3 mm as on March 31,2015 {2018 Rs. Nil, 2007 Rs, Nil}

ol ne




[t Hawdlng Fleaace Private Umibted
Mintes To the Fleranclal Statemants for the year padad March 31, 10149
Al amaunt n Bs, bn milifeas, raeept for shaee data enless stated ovhenvisz)
Ia) rapalerent atawenee for loans and svednted 1o tastomers

This table bl shio s the credis quakity St Whe s tepostda To Sreiid 1k bhed an L Campany's inteenal creda fal ng svstem and year-end wage classhianon,

[tk Catmaoriration. 1,20t5

B HOOs

| H- =
“itagad Siagel Stage 3 Tetal
e 1935 B2 [EEET - 3161
EXITN

b Hinine T 3 Lnag gl gy
Stagel Staged Srage )
L AEran B 2

T e s, ! il
firans Total T T

An analysh of changes s the gress earrylng amaunt in rxlation 1o Retall B Comporate lending is, as foficwe:

PN L SO s ’_—‘ = - FYIRTET)
[ 7 B i
g .. Total
VTR
254816
et k)
faass!
YE_J"\ ik BRI
Trnekiedres e 2
Groy v iing aeoy i L
" Farticuia 2 ]
Al L aan A Losa agzingt 2rap torporataboan & 5CD B
_Faged | Stged Stage 3 Mage 3 Tolal i
084 earrylng Amcait opening halanes 437 G178 Z £ IR E)
HrarsemiEaly : o7 i x el
Repaynients o1z ARET = = -4d 62
(Tranzter fiam Staged 1458 £ - - - -
Transhar: & 2 D55 -3 L3 = =
Framsfers from Stage 4 i - = a - - - = .
Gross carrying balanen _LETRAT) 16,20 ] Le93 00 1878 = b . 1475
Am prahy inthe ECL i relatian to Loans & advarest is, st Tollgws!
Particulars Barch 3L, 2010 1
Housdng Laen 5 Lo apeingt Propery
PR - Stogedl Staze 2 Srage Tatal Stagn 1
(P stamance seminglatance T T TS I X T1 503 Tz
£ or, asrets aiedd prgdzen sraskes R Z _GEe %]
Assats derecr vl o ropaid! InCRIRing venite offa) oan E5 C L2 032
s k] SET—— L i
TransFacs e viate & 07 EE] 521 -0.00 092 . H'EL
ey fomitage ) £.04 EiALl 93 A3 . L] = A £
“asifnes e e § 000 ; e A5 - - - :
{160 alic chozing FABALE 153 nsi|_ T aE FERTE] 147 Az - 190




Ofdl tausing Finance Private tmited
Notes tothe Fmancial Satements fof the year ended March 51, 2018
{allamount In s, o miflens, except for share data usfess stated otherwlse]

~Mareh
T
1o EH naz
B i et 2 333 o - “hin
Asiais dfamcogniyed or repsid{ inciuding wate otk 036 oG . LER] ax . - Ei1Y
B - = 5 * e
freyin Stage 1 T nos 1511 - . =
o Stage ) 01 oot i -
roin Slage 3 3 L R, PR
bl L R L12 £ U T3 T el T |
ilb] impsliment asseasment
T Campany's i " o eemand anpraach ik 1t Gut in the soted below, It shiult ka read i eonj ity the a

oakiciot,

3l Probabilty af dgtault

Tan Carmnany considers a fmancal matronent as defaisted and efriafion it as Stage 3 loondit-wr paired] for E0L catrubat ically waives w5 M edanpr 24 i
eh cantractial paysents Tae probabdity uf ectiuli o an castimate ul the likebiosd of dalault ousr 2 givwn s baiton, The Comguany cansders thas S0 el e 23 per tha
ERSIL dedalt study repon

A} Capmpre ot defoult
Tre wzpetute a1 defbull (EAD) rprasents the 4 ] Fof the linaicial Ay {0 the imnpairr . drg both 1he glianrs abuiity bt

Irciaata i e Apgiendching and e,

M=) Lowgiven defaule
Tha Compony usas FIRB rates a5 presribed by Resonio Bank of ind's v galkeuianion of ki given default

3] Sigaificant intrease n cedit sk

The compary st invgusly mandon oF toiets subject ta ECL. inorder e wheinar an ol forituin o s yubject Yo 1imECL orLTICE, The
compamy stousies whilhen there hat besn a tignilitant incieaye in cres 4 rlk singe it Ul « Thie Company lect an exporisre fo b i pimersansd o0 preplt
ik when comiractioel payerents are mose than 30 days pat due,

Whan estimating ECL: 00 2 colicctive B hara groun of Hanlar diisy  ie company snplies. the sama prinaglss farazseseing whethar ther has beed 2 signihcant medaate m
ErmEi ni ympe ind pal recpgnition.

3y} Cotatesal
The companyis in the business of ewtanding sagared laans raaiary bished by morigage of puoperty resebaniist or commernah,

P nOemat course of Eubioess. e Campany dos 5t phytically (Ro0aess 0ot OF QEIET ASSOTS, But Tecavany oflans doe dtaea on Sebaulaal ksl ihesigh fngal menn: To
tzcover dugiaan Onca pay ars maiw than 00 deyd paat die, reposzssiion of praparty mzy b intialed under tha provielons atthe SARFATS
Ast 2002 Ro-possessed property is dinpared of m the marner Iha. s pwczvar st E

Tha Comgany did not hold any financisl instraminl fad wileh nn oo allsante B secopelsed hecaure of caffataral st Maren 36, 2029, Thare was na chargl in the Somgarmy's
cullaturad pafiey dirieg the year.




Dl Hausing Finance Private Limited
Motes fa the Finandial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
tAll amaunt in Ky, in millions, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

4 Inugstmants
o At fair Wirlue
Amartised Cost Trw'm::h proflt or loss Total

As At March 31,7019
Mutusl Sneis = 125108 1,261.98
Credit substitute 13463 - 134.6
Totel {A) 13483 1361.93 1,396.61
Imvestments utside india G . &
vestments in indio 13463 1,251.98 539661
Tatal (8) 1ia.63 Lam1.48 1,336.61
Less; Allgwance for fmpairment loss (€ | 0.65 056
Tolal Not D = (4} -1C) 133.97 126198 1,395.95

e )

* reestmeita are carried at cost

A sk March 31, 218
Seeuriby rocoipts - LR 408
Credis substitute 1473 - .78
Tatal (4) 1408 4400 13.64
Investmants outside India = 4
investmonts in Indta 108 106 1.4
Total (B} 14.78 4.06 14.84
Lass: Altowance far Impaireent foss {0} 007 - a.o7
Total Nat B = {A) -[C) 14.70 406 .75

i s

* Investments are earripd at cost

As at Apidl U1, 217
Securhy receipts : - 6.25 825
Crelt subst:tute (R - BA.38
Total {A) 6d.38 615 70.63
Investrients dutside Indiz . & %
liwgsiments in l1dia 64.38 6.25 70.63
Tatal B} .38 6.15 70.63
Lass Allowance far Impasmant lass (€} 32 032
Total Net D= (A -{C) 54.08 S.E.E 70.31

Ala) The Campany has considered its imvestments e mutusl fund and secunty receatt as far value tirgugh Profit & Loss on the basis that tese are hald far
trading purpose.

5 DOther financhal 2stets

AsatMarch 31,2012 AsarMarch 31, 2018 As ot April 01, 2015

At fmordzaed Cost
Security Depoiil T, 139 1.36 121




Bl Housing Finance Private Limited
Motes to the Fnancial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2019
(&l amount in fis, In millions, encept for share data unlass statad otharwlze)

ifa) Property, plant and equipment

Leoan Hold Computers and  Furnflure and #fina Yatl
lmgm\mmnu printers ﬂ;yg, enpiffirment .
Cost e o
AvApril 1, 2007 509 196 21 1M .94
Purchase s 154 D14 158 13.97
_Disposals - - = [n.o2) 10.02}
_Ar March 31, 3018 - 14.75 4,50 0.35 4.30 __23ma
Purchase 2260 6,78 L.66 2.09 3322
_Disposals 3:61) - - - [0.63)
At March 31, 2018 —— 36.83 1128 201 639 56.50
Gepreciation
At April 1, 2017 038 (.54 03 030 L7?
Charge fur the year 142 1.34 .06 Lt 409
Dispusals » - - .01} oLy
At March 3'.l= 018 181 218 011 1.65 5,86
Chaege for the year 1.61 113 031 206 10.13
Disposals e foi3s) - - - (0.25)
At March 31, 2019 6.18 541 0.42 3.72 1874
Net Biock
At March 31,2018 12.93 223 0.24 .64 18.05
At March 31, 2019 30.64 5.88 L5% 2.67 AQTE
Othar intangible nssets
Intangible asset Sottware Total
“Grossbiotk = o
At April 1, 2012 L45 0.00
Purchase - =
Disposals . .
At March 41, 2014 1.45 145
Purchase . -
Dispusals a .
At March 31, 2019 1.45 1145
Amaortization
At April 1, 2017 0.26 0.26
Charge for the yoar 0.28 0.26
_At March 31,2018 0.54 .54
Charge for Ine year 027 0.27
At March 31, 2019 0.81 0.81
et bloch
At Marth 31, 2018 0.91 0.91
At Morch 31, 2019 0.64 0.6




I [$ershig Finanée Péibe Limited
Mates 1o the Finandal Statements far the year ended March 51, 2018
Al amount in Bs. 1 milliens, except for share dats unless dated piensise)

e nnn. Hnaadal seusn
Partivdars AuatMarch 11,2009 AsabMaren 3, 2018 Ags: Aprd 01, 2617
Fmunid S epemics a7 a4i ol
Adavanze fostatl 010
Crival pwaidat'e 1 50 oy
Capital islwarin 5 o 0.04
338 31} i
Total S S W51 - 118
Aasais Held For Sale
P e e e A Rh 30, 3070 A
At hiete e dade frulor mete Hiadt £3.] s
Tukal A6 z *
Hia} Aoty Dwainsd by takle yasvevsion of collateral
Thar e pramy eblined the foliaweg ssaste dusing thee yeer by Takig passesaion of collaterai ieid 3y soonity Jgainet Trans aind sduances amt hakd ot tha yyar
el T cammuany's galey oo eealise the coidateral on o bimely st
Farticuiars : L Asattiech3nanin_ haml 7 At 03, 2017
Trapeniot 136 r =
Tatal niscts abtwined by toking possesstan of collateral 185, .
Pavahle:
Particdars Azat March 31, 2033 AsacMacn3l, DOLE  Asat Agrl o, boe7
Tradn Prynias
Tote! eutsarding duos of Miro Lterpiises and Small Entimisas ’ -
Tata: putsandeng dees of Cradlinrs ub e than Macro Teleiraes and Sl 445 1B.95 4u
EuTesfiined Sy S—
Tetal LA0 0.9 am
* Birciosurss undor the Aders, Smal asd Mediam knterprises Sreckqment Ac), 3105
(3} A amaut of tiland Ml wos duse snd actatanding o sapaliors 4% 2t he et of the atcountieg pear o sseount of Priccipal and litesest respestivety,
[} Mo rser2am veus gl e thee yaf i T s wl tmebis 16 of The Micsin Sl amt Medinm Enlsrprises Dovelopment Art, 3096 and no anssest wah 0oid ta
thu supplier Beviml e Sppasded day
la} Hepamnatunt af intereot 1y dug snd pavehis foe the perad of delsy i maing payment but without 2diing te Satersst speciined inier the Sicis, Swall and
ey Enterprises Ueyelopment Acl, 206
) Mo toderest wasatcrued anduppaid at the soafaf the aocounting pra
) tip furthes nlores g : il n bne rabing yaars fne the ! draadl i ad g i Wisles artion i3
extehg Wi, Seall and Mediien £ oterprinsy Davelopmant A, 2006
Thie shave slagmeton reparcing Wiere, Imall ang Madiuem Laiorpriies hag secs lotarmined 1 the ¢ateat vth pastley bave been [denlified on the nass of
Inforeatian avalizble with the Company. THIS has beon rolled yiwim by e s,
Digl Seqqritins
Atamemissdees _— AgatMarch 11, 3019 Asat March 31, 2013 A st Ape o), 2017
Unincurs
Liabiity Lomp ol CCREy W age e} . 13066 0%
Tetal gross (A} i - 17966 §3.98
ekt securittes in arla L/l B2
Pt wesaricions gutsare bndia - -
Fistal {3} 40 [ofy with [A) L] 179 66 3708
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[t Houting Finanree Frivite Limited
Notes to the Finanrin! Statements for the year endpd March 11, 2010
1A bt b A o milllons, everpt fue share data unlpes stated otherwlse)

1 fo Than Dabt
A smaice caue ATAT M DL 2N As st March 3L 301D Asat April 0, 2017
Seturmd
Term baant {rofer nate 11,4, 1.5 % 11.6]
Tanrm Bankffledee nofe 11.3) 11471 3RS (LS
Otherz
Craln Ceatit fredes note 1L, 2 lan gz oany *
Fotst grass (4] T REF A 1933
Borrawiegs = Ingha 65,81 LN i
Boserwangs ot sine Indig .
Totad {8 to alkywith i8] 466,30 U250 fLETY
e S =

ALY Smcunid d3m loany o Dacks Inchude toana from Jasneoe tanks TITIY It Of TATETE R i 1N g S e (i B Thee lgey spm bauie tonte ol f
weans From the date of disbursement ana ate repayabio o rmnthty o gy indtdnenine Phiss lgass see S5t Uiy i it o femmemne T (et 0
Hhes kosas siwcis by Vse Dotnpany

L1 7 Berrovwangs Trum Rank aee sosucet agvinel bypathes stion of laans ghee by ihe Camoaw

85 1 Chaoges b labilftles ariving fram finznring actiarias

Azt Anet
Parfoutars e Mt 23 2018 o Mot Cthher® Mach 3, 2313
Dt asgurdins Lrom [EEET] G
Aorwwings WA 11599 46693
Tolal 16252 [[FEE0) D75EE] 66553

Avar At
Parinsars Masch 31, 017 LCash fows Ovner? Muerth 51, 308
Tnbit tngaei et iy () [FEr
Borrawengs e 5194 552 20
Tatsl 10835 AT E[72T]

HThiS repest ity sty eamt ponent of CEFS mned dunng the year snd tntarest accried on COPS Far gt
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DRI Howusing Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended farch 31, 2019
(All amount in Rs. in millians, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

12 Other finangial hiabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 Ax at April 01, 2017
Interast accrued bus not due
From Rark- Term Loan 147
Employee payables 0% - -
Other finandial liahities 1531 L0l #4308
Others = 37050 196.94 >
38736 19795 6430
13 Provisions
Partieulars
As at March 31, 2019 Ag ot March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Dravision for employes banelit
Leave avlment B2 1.76 040
Gratuity 2.87 1.04 0.55
ECL on undrawn loan commitment 513 164 040
14.23 .84 1.85




LA Hesusiap Hoaade Private Limited
Wotes to the Financial Statemonts far the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amount In As, In milllons, ekeept for shatre data unless stated otherwise]

18 Tax penzes

Tre majar eomponesls of meome b erpense far the year snded Margh 23, 2019
Frofit ar fots sortios

Vear ead il Year anded
ftarch 31, 1004 March 31, 2018
Carvent incurms b
Tureait incomm tay charge L59 73
Adjustm=nts in reapeet of vur oot incsre tog of predous year
Dafarred tae
Ralaling to originatian ane reverishof temparary differences (L&
Tneame tax supense reported In the skatament of prafic or fozs e ey I‘iél;l
i sectinn
tinferrad taw ratated o itenys racagmisnd D0 aningg i yeass
tansch 31, 2 Rtareh 14, 0011
Acturial gatn oa gratuity 402 aa?
Incame tax changed to 22 202 a7
= —
Pezanciilation of tag ezpan:e and the i prol. lied by India's & tax rats for Mareh 35, 2005
- Vear anded Year eaded
et L
Ficulaes Msrite
Ascourping wofit Bybars tax frem conlinrg gasdabicns . 1n5s {2.59)
Profit/{ioss) beforn tax Fom 2 siscoetinued operstion 2 -
profichalsra | 1 Ha [LEL]
Expenses Disaliveed in Incoms ot 4203 60y
thar permanast diferance ki ds bR
Eosz on sale of fixed aszets L -
Diffirence indogreeiation as per i and books ef areoued 063 1aq
Prowsian foar Cratuity 638 L35
Uniealbzad gain en mutgest fundy f24.83) +
Tauable Inrame 76 8.5
Taxat statidory income fax date ol 27 BFA (MY 25 752 - (o} 215y 135
Ineraimeatal defired tax abidinmes flassets) noacdount of Faasels! srsels arsd othes iteme
Unreatized gain on mutuzl hands nay .
. 381 lue
13T p—— {0.01) 0.01
Gratuity and Leaws Entasiment 141 D43
Dilfference betwezn WiV a3 per Comparios aci and IT Act. 14 05
Tncotpmation uxpenss E fouz)
Unnmartized Gormmwings cast 019 040
Linamortiged Processing fee wha {7.43)
On CCP5 interest camponant B Rl A
Tax 25 etlecsve income Tay rate of 274200 1PV 29055 (5] Esn fa.31)
Total Tax axpenses [ash] 1363 EE L]
Defarred Tax [abiliies f {assan] - 5 Az at bdarch 31, 2018 AzatMarch 31,2008 Asatapll 01, 2017
Dafeered tax lEability
Liraafized gai on gl b [6.91] -
Unampstized Fee/D5AS incantive impact fa.02) {482
CLPS eruily compurent impact 4 [a66.95)
Graxs defareed tax lablity - (204611
Oeferred rox asiat
Eupacied croah aa (ECE] 561 25
Frodsion for gratuiby snd Leave availmnf 153 ur
Diffzrenca botwern fa { and i tizatic
ehaegadd for tie Linancal depariang 13z A
S0P . oo

Unmmartheed Froveasing ‘e
IBEEMAT U B nie

Gress deferrad tav assot 5.03

et Deferred Tou Asset/{Liakiity}

[125.50]




Dol Housing Finance Privete Umited
Hatss bt the Faancial Statemants for the year ended Mareh 33, 2029
fall amaunt ia fiz, in mitllons, axcopr for share data unless stated otherwise)

15 Other Mon-flnancial Labitiies

Barticars e Asattdanch 31,2010 Aeal Margh 31,2018 AgatApitnl, 3017
Stalutey Bues Payahls nes i L
Empoyee iglated stautory Jues in a6 073
Provessasy foe Tupanzas EE NS mag 342
Tatal

B < S e _Gl6




DA Hausing Finande Private Limited
Mares to b Hinancial Statenents for the year eoded March 31, 2619
(AN amaunt i A5, in millions, exeept for share data unloss stated otherwlsa)

46 Equity sthare copital

Dauils of eutiotiped, imued, sutietibed and pild up share capial_ el

Wik March 31, Asal Mareh 41, AsarApriOL,

_____ B 2019 ein 24T

Apthniied thary Capitel
A B08,000 £31 March, 2078 - 2540000, L dpl, 20170 350000,200] Exulty Shares ol Be, 10/ wach 2,400.04 250,00 000
401,00, 9050 (41 Redanchy, MOLA < 0,000,000 ¢ £ Apall, 3057 - 34,000,000) Compuboniy Conuarthle Prefarenca Shaie of R 100 rach 2 L4 00 ¢4 SO0

19,003.00 1,350.60 18060
izugd |, Subseribod & Pald up egoinal
Jaguid bl Sube iityed Cagal:
ARLA45,534 {31 March, BAE- 105373 1 Apnl, B2 16,605, %46) Equity sharss af s, 105 wech ARM AL 16053 1B 06
93,612 [32 March, 2008 - 31,210 ¥ g, 3017 - O Caes A Eau'te thares of Ry, 10/ aach 853 i

: 1 R = e e s T BN
161 ™ il of equity shares diotg at Ui Laginmieg Srrd ot thie end of tae reporting pear.
Mame-of the sharabickder Asg at March H,;DIB A atMach 41, 2018 Ag at hpril 01,2017
o, af shares Rmaunt No. of sharet Amount  Ne.of shares  Amgunt

Eauity Shore of the Baginniag of prar 5,00,30 503 18330 18005745 G008 15350088 15251
i
Erquity Share Allokted duriag yoar
Enaras musd JUring (e yuar 317151601 kol 803517 w32 2751521 2755
Lharms wlud dndind Cass & 61,437 LG AL2ED -
Srarng issund persugnl trconver sion of romprson by convertible arabarense share 13,5694 560 1,355.45 ¥
Lquity share arsh end of year B MIs0NER  AEISIR 1903083 M
T cgrprany it bwee slass of oquity shares [if erdinary ¥ [ii] Clazs A aquity shares hoth baving par vabe of Ry 10 per ahare,

Deasivary Futy Sharmi: Esch holder of nrdineey sauity thares is entitled 12 ona vota par share and right to diyfiband.

Chass & fyuiiy Shares - Clans A egudty 12are shall mear =ty shases with ddfereniial vebing and dwidand rghes widch shai e satilld 1e voting right, dsidends ard distributions in the sazets of tha
Carnpaany In Pha g palinn Vg iF wouh have boen enttled 12 it had been tsued 2z an ordingiy sty shase i the Fiy Tioted Byainty Coaal of the Camguny.

Tha cesrgiany dheglaend angd pagt civadends in g rupees. The dividend procesed by the Bosrd of Lirectors is sutject to tha approval of the shirehaidare in the sraing Anmoal Ganeral Boeting,

b it srwsistof Bauldatian of the cornany, the olders of couity shares wil! be entitled to recews ramamning asseis of the company, ftur distally !t prgfarential amaunts. The distrs wall b i
proprrtion to thay numbar of aguty Sares e'd by the tharehaliers.

1£.2 Shuras héld by holding Campany
ek . m— i B NE ke o e
OMr lmited AL RIATESS SO0 A2FE 514 el e 44,006,514 AW
Tutal 45 82,127,558 FALIEHR Q400,514 _H1ATH 4488514 2493
As pie nizands of the Cavaany, ek o 18 frgister of shareboldery membars and other declirations recalved bom sharehnhders wanrding fnelicial interssl, the ahove vharehokiing represents foth
tagal and Bensfielal s el tams,

153 Betals of sherehalden haldiag mase than S5 ahares in e Conipeny PR PP < i
Naonamee s ol s sy o o s st
O il A5.82,12,559 94985 ERR AT 362 24, B0 514 2490
OML Finance Pelvate Usized FARITIT a0rs 140,179,232 TR 145,279,232 oM
Forai - ABANARHIE_ Saomn  Lusos e 9100% _ LA0.Un746 0.0

S per peconsis of the Campany, inchding its register of shaselatiburs! mwmberi srd aiher duclatstisn: received from sharehalers regaring beneticial inforass, the atioue sharginfifng sopreienis bath
legat and berafienl swestshipe of thares,

164 Tor detells of sharea reacreed forizsus under the omployaa stock gptian [ESOR| adan of tha Compony, refer nctg 27




Dt Housing Finance Private Umlted
Mates to the Finpncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amountin Rs. in millions, except for share data untess stated atherwisa)

17 Other squity

Particulars AsalMarch 31, 2013 AsatMarch 31,2018 As at Apsil 01, 2017
Share Premium Account 4152 7156 7h4
Spasial reserve ufs 29 of The Nathanal Mausing Bank Act, 1987 read 15.36 451 204
with 36 1) (Vi) of Income tax Azl 2961°

Share Basnd Payraon Reserue 574 044 -
Rotained earpings 113.85) {24 55) (9.5}
Egpuity Component CCPS - 575,66 304,80
Total LLENTY — . SEBIR 304,63

* Sectien 29€ (1) of The Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1987 defines that evary housing finance institution which is a Compary shall ereaie = eavnmue fund
and transfer therein @ sum ot fts than twenty poreent of its nat prolit every year as disdosed in the statement of allt and lass boatore y
dividend is declared, For this purnuse any speginl reserve created by the Company under Sectlon 36{1) (¥} of Income L Act 1961, 15 considered o
9@ an eligitle transfer. The Company has transferrad an amaunt of Rs,20.85 mm (2018 R%,2.47 mm, 2047-Nil} to special reserve in terms of Secian
36{1) (vhi) of the Income Tax Act 1961 considered eligible for special reserve u/fs 25C of NHB Act 1987,




Divil Howsing Finance Private Limited
fotes to the Financls) Statomants fur the year eoded March 31, 2019
(A amaunt in s, in mitlkons, except for share data upless stated otherwise)

1 intorest incomi
Vaar ended March 31, 2009 mar erded March 31, 2013 ""
i inigrest incoma an a ol | listerest Income on
Pariieola On fianclal assets O financial hﬂam:iai asyets  On flnang ? assels  On Nnancial assets Heioreta) aesite
meagured 4t falr  atiets 1 Tassiilnd at fale at fair d a1 ARSIl
saipe theotpgh OC1 at Amaortised cost valie through value through 0C  Amartised cost tlicough prufitand{oss
S proftandloss = i S
Interest.an Loans + 06y 1329.80
intarast on deposits with Basks B 453
- 35053 = 14733 -
19 Feosand copesrasion income
Fartfeutars Year ended March  Yoar endad March 31,
AL 2015 20148
Dther lee income 34.90 1404
34.90 1a8s
20 Haot galnffioss) on fals value changes
Partleulars Yoar anded Marth  Vesr ended March 31,
3, 2048 018
Nxt gainf{inss) on finandal Instruments a1 fair value through prafit and foss
1} ¢ tracing perticlio
Tnwesiments ALUG 174
Total Mot gaing{foss) on falr value A2.06 174
changes '
Faiy valus chunges
Realisad e i
Unrealised A3 x
Total Mot galaf{less) on falr valug
changes ilg& 173
11 Otherincome
Particuters Vear ended March  Year ended March 31,
31,2019 238
Other intome LiiZ
Tatal 1562
47 Flnancg Losts
Vear ended Fiarch 31, 2019 Yrarended March 31, 7018
n fnancial an financial
Baeticutars Hablitios an fi b i firanetal Habliitios
measured at falr - Rabiitles measured atlair value  meswred at Amortised
walye thraugh st Amertlized cost  through Prefit or cost
FR— - SR Prafit or loss lnss
lerost an borrowings BB.EY - 3629
Dther Fnanee Cast 240 z .33
Teonat E LG - " 4042
i3 o fimancial i
__ Yoar onded March 31, 2009 Year anded Mareh 33, J018
On Tinancial On firanclal O financlal
i an financlal
Particulars
" INStrURELS measured
moasurad at fair meazired at measured at faie

Irvsiments . LR = inas)
Loans Assels 1161 2 406
12,40 5 a7
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DI Housiag Finande Private Limited
Nates to the Binancial Statemants for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

[Al amaunt in Rs, in millions, excapt for shars data unless stated otherwise)

Emplogee Banefits Expriries
Barticulas

Year ended March  Year ended March 31,
Sularies and weges o mllgsa 16 s
Contribution to provdant and ckher funds & D"; v
Snare Daseil Payments to emplivees 112 e
Stait weelfars experses -q.u o'!u
ol 4. 2.5

Earnd Loava Plans
Employee can encash fised £aimed |
furing fhe #mployes sarvics. As par compiny’s policy s1ened leave ewtithement will he eateubsted at cTc

Tha fnflawng tahles the o
0 L batance sheat for the respective plas.

Statemeant of profit and loss

Hut smployos berohit expence

ARG TR

PR

vy bl the tins of seperation fram the Campany. Actomulation of e3med leae days cath 401 exeosd 45 days at sy time

of nel benafits expenie recognized in the datement of predit and loss and Hie finded status and amounts recegnized

Year ended March  Year eoded March 31,
31, 7019 2038
Curreit Servien eoil 4356 1.26
interazt cost 114 .o
stetorn o plan 250tz i -
Nt remeasurerent (Rain) / o reesgnized nthe year o -
Nt mxpenis 450 1.29

Remneasuramunt {galrs)f loss recognised In Prefit & Loss account:

Yeat ended Marcel  Year anded March 31,

31, 2019 = 018 |
Remeazusamen: (gain) { loss on ablizations aisng fiom thangas In sxenencs adjustments o1 0.53
Remeasuramiat (gain]  10cs on cbiigations arising trom chamges in financial scsumgtions .14 10.09)
Remeasuremant (gain] / lass ansing during the y=ar _ﬁa 044

Dalanes Shoot

et defined beneli lakility

Year ended March  Year eoded March 31,
a1, 2018 1

Fresent waluz of defined Lenelil nblgation
Fair value of plan assels

Flan laluliry

fue uf the defined benetit abligation are as follows:

Chany rRseng

6.23 176

6,23

1.76

Yoar ended March  Yoar eodes March 31,

Tipening delined benefit abligation
Clurrant o ool

interest fuit

Benetits pald during the yoar
Itemaaturement (Zan)fioss on nabpatoh
Closing dellned hensh obligation
Tha gringiple assumiptions used in o inations for the ere shown balow:

rreining grafuiiy

3,7 2018
L7 o040
#.36 1.26
R T bnt
10.33) {0.37)
030 044
6.23 1,76

Year ended March  Year ended March 31,

31, 2014 ANE
D cunt it *6EY 7R
Sakury mxesbbion rate 6,003 b0l
ape Upts 30 = 330 A upin 30 5
agr Fhdd = 29 age Gla4 e o

Fraployes Tanmus: i 4

g aboyve 44 1% M abowi A = 1%

G

i

Chitiialion nd other Teleyant factors, suzh as wpply



DA Howsing Finance Private Limited
PMutes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{8l mount in Hs, in milllons, except far shase dsta unless stated atherwise]

Sensilivity Analysta:
A guantieative sensitiving analydls far slgnificant sysumption |5 35 shown bolow:

s at Asat
Preician ST March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
1 { E0% charge In pzsumed discount raie :
a) Elfuct o i { o) -

- D.50% incresse :
o1s
+ L5 dacreasn 051 15

fu} EPfect of 0 50% thange in 2ssumed salary arcalation rate i

i alis i 0.55 i3
et BT L S S = N——— i85 19,14

T — = =

The faliowiing payments are expested contrbunans ta (hs datined benelit alan n fature years:

/ Expostod payment far luture yaars 31-Mar-149 11-Mar-18
010 1 ¥aar g ,04)
/ L 0.0
3 Year 4.03
1tedd Vaar £ o.14
A b Ve ~ LT . £ 16
0.13]

Gratuity and (ther Ratirement

Benefit Plans

The Cornpany bas 3 delined benebt gratuty plan, Evory amployes who has completed fve years ar mare of fervice 2 ehgibls for gmtuty on cessation of emplayent
and it is computed at 15 days satary (last drawen salaryl for cach completed veor of servics subject 1o zuch limit as prescribad by The fayment of Gratulty AL 19720
amentded from ime te bime

The ful tabbes e the g of nat benehts tapense recognized i the statement of prafit and loxs and the funded status and amountsreceried
in the hatance sheet for the respective plans,

statemant ol prafit and beis
Hel etnployer bonefit expensa
srcopnived in the emplayas ozt

Year endisd Masch  Year ended March 31,

. 31,208 08
Subrent e st 184 o0
Interast Cost Qe o4
Retuin oo gplan azsets . .
Hetr eat {aom) f s tacogmzed i thi yisar + .
Met expense 1.92 174

Hemeaturement fiins}f loss recognisnd fn other comprehensive income:

‘Yaar ended March  Year ended March 31,

31,2019 01
Remmeaseremont [z3im] [/ loss on obligations anseg from chinges In eaperience adjustments {012} 0,22)
Rermeasuremment [zam] / loss on obligahions sising from changes in financial aswmptons 0.06 {o.04]
Aemeastirament [gain] § Ingd arising during the year (0 ga) E"'?“I

Halance Shest
Nest delined heaefit liabily

Year enided March  Year ended March 31,

31,2019 2088

Srosent valis of gohaed borelit oblgatan 8 2,87 L%
Fai valug of et assets P = 3

2HT 1:,11
i =3




BMI Housing Finance Private Limited
Motes ta the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Al amaunt I Hs. In miflens, excopt Tor share data unfess stated otherwlse)

Changes in the pragent valus &t the deted Bienafiy ghipatiun are 25 fallows: =Py . -
Vear endad March  Yoar endad March 31,

- i . a1, 1019 014

Elpeniig uelined beneln oblgation 10 0.5
Clireond drrvice eost 1A o
Ininsest gast am o0

Hemalts pasl dutlng tie vear

Remessuremient (gaie]flos s ekligation {o.o8) 6

Cloatng defined benrhit anligation 2487
The pringiple assumpatlons used in dateneiniog gratuny chlzations for the Carvipany are shows brluw,
Year entded Marth  Year ended March 31,
32019 DU
Discount rate i 7. P
Safary meatainia rate 005 6.80%
A2 o 31 - 3% #ie upto 30 = 33
: age 402 1N age 3)-4d = g
Fragioyss Tamoar age abave 34 = 1% age above 44 = 1%

e eslimatees of (uture salary increases, considarmd n achuiral valuation, teke scconmt of nftation, denindity, promoticn and other refevant Faetars, such as supaty

Experierce adjustaent for the fepiited yesrs ars a2 belaw:

- PMarch 31,2019 March 33, 3018 March 31, 2007 March a1, 1016 March 31, 7015

Definad benefit ohilzation

lan asints

sutplas | (deficit)

Fxperience adjustnents on plan
Hakbifiites

Exgeriznee ndjustments on plan
Rssels

Seasltivity Analysis:
A quantitative sensitlsity analysts for dgnificine assumption i3 as shawn helow:
M Az ar

Feiaty Maech31, 3019 Raech 31, 218

@) Effect of 050 change i assurmed dicotnt rate

-.50% Ircranse [0.33) [R5
-D.50% decrease .26 o039
b} Efteetof 0 50% chinge i assume sslary escalation rake
0.50% increass 6 oo
< 0.50% decrease i 34) {m. oy
The felidog p are eted contaibutons 1o tha defined benefit plan in future vears:
Expected payment lor future years 3-Mar-13 Al-Mar-1E
|ota i vear = el oeh
1102 o o .
2 10 1 Year 0y .0y
dledVear L8 L a3
[4 Lo 5 Vear aak _oz
o b Year &2 0.az

& Yoar arwards 153 197,
! Total snpectad peyments 1.8/ 1.03




Dot Houslag Finaoce Private Limied
Motes to the Flnancil Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Al amount In Re.in milllons, except for share data unless stated athenwise)

F Diher oxpanses
Fear ehded Moreh  Year ended Mareh 31,
31, 3019 L e
Errdit rating fea &t -
Lagal and profesional feet 541 1338
Aught fee 291 0T
Gnods B Seraice tax weikten off 5.3 Lan
Subseription and license fees .16 162
Mates and taxes an 4.0
Husingss promation 196 a1s
Aepars and manitenance atners a7s o
Travelling eupanses TAL 698
Boarding and lodging expense - Los
Clectneily expeiz 82 | LR
Office ruening and malatenance expeaies [ 253
Cnmmunication sepenss 2B 152
Amortisation of add on cust on na-tuaverible debentures 233
Rent 1Ak 455
Printing and stationery 5 115
tbscelaneans capenses 013 033
Taral Egbié 4‘_&3_
Zafa) Auitor's remuneration
Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March 31,
31, 2018 2018
As audian
For audit L] 055
Far taxation (PR aa5
For certificatian g 010
081 0l
—===3
26 Earning pet share
Farticslars o Foar endet Marth  Year ended March 31,
Sl 31,2019 2018
Following refiects the profit and thare dats vsed in EPS computations!
Baske
Weighted average numbier of aquity shares far computation of Basic E95 {in Be.) 235594 Bi6L
Net profit for calculation of Baae EPS 1554 [12.56)
Dusle aarning per share fin fa} 0oy {0.15)
Dilutad
sweighizd average number of eguity shures far computation of Diluted EPS (in R=) 23588 B162
Net prafiz for caleulauon of Diuted 1551 {12560
EPS {in R} e TN
Dituted eaming pee shure {in Ba) 2 A ooy 10.15)

Hemiial walue of nruity shares s Rs.) e oo 10,63




OMI Howsing Finance Private Limited
Fiotas o the Finandlal Statements for the year eided Mareh 31, 2019
[All amopnt in Rs. In millions, axcept for share data unless stated ntherwise)

77, Emplogea Stock Optian Man

L The Comparny Fag iormadated share-batad phyment schemes for it emplayees - DR IEC £520 PLAN 2000 {Plan”]. Deraih of all 2rants in ogerstion durleg the year eoded
March 31, 2330 are an piven below;

Schome Neme DM HFC ESOP DM HFC Retention DM HFC ESOP Plag,
Plan, 2018 Plas, 2048 Managamant Scheme
Date of gram 19 March 2018 1 Apal 2018 L Dbt 2013
Date of Bosrd | Comeensation Comntittes aapraval 16 March 2018 4 Al 2018 L etohar 2017
Murmzer of Oplians grapted 5315 36516 3154530
Mathad of setfierent Sharos Snares. Shores
Groded vesting period ~ Soe Below oo Baaw See elow
First vesting deie 18t March 2018 31 March 2058 3 September 2047
Exorcise period 5 yuars {3 5
As per DMIHFC E50P Az por DMI HFC Rotention  As por OMIHFC ESOR
Weming conddions Plan, 3018 Plan, 2018 Plan, Mardgemsnt
Scheme
Exmuise prica per ¢plion 1068 w1 0.8
Stnck price an the data of grant 1nER 2

* A par the veskng schedule 30%, 200 & 40% Cplons wit ves! on complation of Gria year, bwo yenes and (heen years fram the qgrant data respectively.
* Exerciss Pariod in respact of any Veaid Options maans the peniod commenting 6 e date of Vnsting of suc option and exgivng on e filh saversary of
optien Grant Dale,

fl. Reconciliatlon of options

COptiens outstanding a1 the baginning of the yaar 3401068
Cronted during hs vear 38,91.558
Exvtised duding ihe yaar -
Crulsianding & e et of He yeur 440872
feighted avarnge q fite: {1 yaara) a4

Hil. Computation of falr valus
The Compary has uzed fair value metod for TSOP wivagions, For undenaying far valualion of ESOP, the Company b2 using Black-Cohales Sodei.

Eebi OMI HFC ESGP CIRl HFC Ratentian D HFC ESOP Plan, |
Plap, 2018 Plag 2018 | Managgmant Scheme
Fair Markat Valus 10.88 .y 1183
Volatisty 15% 15% 15%
Rish frae Rl 5% 3% %
Dividend Vel 0% O o%
> Exnrcae Prics 10.68 W02 o 1280
Option Fair Valug 3.08 155 149
| L1 £
Emaloyees of the Company were enlitled o shares of GMIE Hausing Finange Mivaps Lirited unde a0 aguity-setiied shere-tsged sation plan. Details of these plant arn
given hadaw,
DN Hausing Firance Private imitad adoated vanous ES0P 3ians for simployes retentan fnid m reeogntion of emplay verovarall parfarniance of the Comparry
Sack options ssice § years from the daio they are granted and vost over three year unless i bry the Baardin ad: with the aption Pan, The Optan glan

v tatipnts the righe e rteoive thares of the company upon e fapie of theit retatnd (estrcions. Restnttions on omtiens, lipge i varous Inttements and ot varkaus iates,
eginring after onz yiear from date of grast thraugh grastes relvement

The employess” companzation expense for Stork options dunng the year ended 31 baceh 201% amounts 1o Rs. 2.18 mm |previous year Rs. 304 mm].




DM Housing Finance Private Limited
Metes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
{tail amount in fts. in millions, excopt for share data unless stated otherwise}

28 First-time adaption of fad AS
The Company has prapaced o nd A8 carnshant linancial statements for year endad March 31, 2019, Tha comparatve year ended on Mareh 31 2008 il
an opening ind AS Balance Shest as at Apel 1, 3017 {Thie date of transition), =5 dnierined in the summary of significant accounting palicies. This rote
suplams the priegipsd adupstrect made by the Company in restaring its previaus GAAPR financial statements, inchuding the balance sheet asat Aprl I,
2017 and ke financial statamends 25 at and for the year ended March 31, 2008

Fae yours eoded upto the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company had greparad its rgncial statements in accordance wilh the acceunting standands
natified ender section 143 of the Sompanies At 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) itules, 20124 (Brevious GAAP)

Examptlons applied
ind A5 101 allows fisst-timz adopters certain exemptions from the reteospective dpplication of certain requirements under Ind AS, The Company has

applied the following exemptions/escentions:

Estimates
The estinates at April 1, 2017 and at March 31, 2018 are conslstent with thase made for thi: same dates in accosdance with Indian GAAP apart frum the

foliowing adjustments:
- Fair vatuation of financials instruments carvied 8t FYTPL and FVOCH

- impattrment af financil sssets based on Cypected Credit Loss (ECL] model
- Betermination of discounted value for financial instrumants carrled at amartized cost

The estimates ussd by the Company to present thess amounts in acoordange with ind A5 relloct conditions at April 1, 2017 the date of transition t2 ind
Ab, anill g of March 31, 2018,

Classification and measurement of financial asiets
The Company has classified the financlal assets in accerdance with ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and drcumstances thit exist at the date of transition

Property, plant & equipimeit & intagible assets
The Company has elected to continue with the caerying value for all of its FPE, Injangicle assets and fvestment Properties as recognized in ts Indian

G financial as deemisd eost al the transition duta,




e
DAl Housing Finance Private Umited
Moles to the Financial Statements for the year ended Merch 31, 2019
(Al 2mount in Rs. o milllons, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)
Zitla) MetWorth Heconcillation as on March 31, 2019

Ilnemncumicn of Tguity usdar Ind AS and Indian GAAR March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017

Tatal Equily as per IGAAP 1,140.02 716.38

Loans

EIR of goeesding les, DSA & nnentive {17 0a) [2.08)

! on fisaneizi i fLea} 013

Dorrowlngs
|Adoptian of EIR for gisortiation of income anid avliErses £ 17 063

Comautiariiy Convertible Braferanse Sharns

Linhliity Companent of compound financial ingiramentd 179,661 {az.sR)

Resognitinn of Dofermed Tag (13810} (137,38}

Total 15443 484,60
Iamm ai per D AS 75449 4B4.69 |

[Recandifation of Profit under Ind A5 and Indizn GAAP March 31, 218

Ineeme ad por 1GAAR 133

Expected credit otz on finencial assety [0y

ER of srocessiag fee, DSA & ingrnlve 116 46},

|Aduption of EIR for amartisation of Barrowings 145

Interest enpense an Fatiffty component of £CPS {17.13)

Dufereed Tau - Other sreas 130

Defarred Tax- CCPS 128

Toral {1237)|

Total profit as per ind AS f12.37)

Naotes to ragonciintinn af the Indian GAAR end Ind A5

Under Indian GAAPR, logn srocessing fees received in connection with feans portfofio is recagaized uplmnl and cregited to eafit ar Tosk for the period. Undor
Int A5, loan procasang fes b credited {0 profit and loss using the effictive intarest rate method. The unamarized portion of lnan processing lee i3 adjusted

A Fronm the Town porifolio.

For Bormwings Under indian GAAR, transaction eusts incureed in cosnaction with boreowings are amortized ualront and charged w profit or bas foe the
periold. Under imdhS, transaction costs are included in the intial eecogiitan amdunt of financia lasiity and charged ta prolt or loss uiing the sffactive interest
method.

tader the Ind AS, slidwance s peovided on 178 [ans given to custamars on this hasis of perientsge ohtaned by evaluating the loas of the previout years.

Undpr Indian GAAR, the Company has created fer laans and ad based an the Gukddinas on prudentisl nosms isued by Reserve Bank OF indin.
Undas ind AS, imy adowante bt been d d based on Expectad Loss madel [ECL) Due i ECL miogel, thy Company impairad its luans and o

B gdvarces in addiion, £01 an off batance sheet has alsu been determined is pes ind AS | The differaatial ampact ras been adpusted in A=tamed earnings/ Profg i "l‘:-\

and loss duriey thee year Under Indlan GAGPR Luaes & Adyances ware prasented net of pridsios fue NBA adg Provien agaiast ssandary 35500 wete presented Sl fr.*'ﬂ

T
andet provsuns. However, under ind A Binanceg! 256088 messured 3t 3osvtised 2t {inajorly Ioens) are preserted notal prowson far edpected e ;d lm}df
f =

\\in“
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Tntian GAAF risquiees defeired tax accounting using the meome statsmant asgraach, which focuses sn dillerences helwaen reabie profits ang sccowitis \{_’_
pefits for tha perad. Yed A5 12 requlres entities 10 aecount lor delrred taes using the batance sheet anaraach, which Focuset un temparary dilferences
hetween the carrying annoust of snatser or Lagilsy in the brlance shoat and s tax hase. The agplicatan of ind A5 12 appsaach has resulted i recognition of
8 deferred Lax on asw temastary difforcaces which was not regquired under Indian GAAP,

Inaddition, thg vanous t i ipad ta ¥ Actarging to the accounting polices, s Compairy bas to secount [or fath
diffesamces. Defered Lax adjual are ooy in careglation to the underying transaction sber in retsined earnings o a separato camponeat of aquity




DA Hawdln g Flnance Privace Limiied
fales io the Fnandal Statements Tar the yeor snded Mareh 31, 2019
fAll amaunt in K. In militons, exept for share data asiess thated sthenslsn)

2% Segmentinfarmation
The Campany has anly she epartabic bustness segmont, e, ending to barrewsrs, Wiith Aave smiar ruks and returns for the pucpiase of Had A L0E a0

‘Cpersting Segments’ natded upder Camasnics {Incian A g s | fules, 2015 and G {iactian & £ o) Aemergiman
Aulies, 2016.The tatngeny spsrates ina sngle hical segevmit ], o

39 Deralls of dues to micro sl snall enterprises a5 deficed under the MEMED Act, 2006
There are po amounts tat need to be disclosed in aczardance with the Miers Small and Kedium Enterprize Devalaamant Act, J008 [tha "MIMED)

Aartaning to mectn & smuall imte-prises. for the year snded March 31, 3089, March 31, 2368 and Agril 1, 2017, na sugplicr has intimated the Lammpany
abant 155 &latus 2€ micra o amall enterprides ar i regstaation with tha approprlate authority under MSVED,

31 The Campany does notave any pending Itigation 45 an March 11, 3018, Mareh 34, 2094 and Apeit 1, 2017,

31 Commitments and tostingencies
Phers is no tontingen: Lzmhity a2 on March 33, 2019, Marsh 31, 2018 B Aol 1, 2017

531 Refated party
= Mamesaf ealated panties mlentifisd in secordance with IND AS <24 "Belated Pargy O sclosures [with wham there were transections duaring the year]
1, Entities where contral aulsis:
Hufding Compeny DA Lieniveed (ue.e F 20th Decermbe, 2015)
D0 Finanes Private Umited (0l 391k December, 2018)
2. Diretlors Mr. Yuvraja Chanakys Sirgh
e, Shivashish Chattarae

Mr. Gauray Burman
Mr. Tamar Ame

3, Fellow sebsidiaries DM Comsumes Credit Private Limited
Tahl Froanes Prevate Limited

B the naturd sl valume of tensactiand earied out with the abave related aartied in the ordinery course of Business see as foliows -

2. $harasissued! sold during the year to (lram) related pany

- - March 31, | March 31,
Eoulty Share Capltal * £
Froy Shisce Fatal. 2013 218
lssue of eiry shares _ b 337452 =
Secutitied premim received oL o4 5
Mz, Yuuraja Chanakys Sing
s of @ty shares i 283
E
|securilics premium receivad J Bl ) __
e March 1L, | March 31, |
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share Capital :
! i i 2018 18
B Flaance Private Limlled
BsapolCors 5 B
resmaen Feceie 35.47 .46 |
2. Other Transaclions
f = ; March3L201a [ T Wkl goie
| Hame of refaled pacty Mature of Irensactions  Amoust | Amount  Amount | Amaunt | Dutstanding |
: secelund itd balange pafd balepea
DM Finance Pvate | % 196 [ 1] W -
o el - 927 3o I3 FeA L _-1,];\\
o g ) g ! dsels o 240,55 = ] .
Sumeladiets . - 47.0%
_ Btz e ol exprpasg B3 - 097
i asets Lnraugh ESOF dag| - 143 *
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DI Housing Finance Private Umited
Mates te the Flnandal Statements far the year ended March 31, 2018
(Allamount in Rs. in millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

36 Standard issued but ot yet efective

Ind AS 116 Leasas

In March 2018, the Ministey of Corporite Alfairs wsued the Companies (Indian Accovnting Standards) (Amendenents) Bules, 2019, natifying ind
AS 116, ‘Leaans”. Ind AS 116 replaces ind AS 17 ‘Lantes’. ind AS 126 is effertive for annual years beginaing on or after 1st Agril, 2019,

Ind AS 116 sets gul the pgrieciples for the recognition, measurement, presentation acd disclosure of leases ind requires lossees lo account for
all leases undee @ single on-balange shert madal dmilar to the accounting lor finance lpases under IndAS 17. The standard Includes twa
recoprition exemptions fur lessees — leases of Sow-value' assets (2.5, personai computers) and short-tarm 'eizes {le, lzases with a lease term
of 12 months ar less). At the commencement date of 9 lease, o lessee will recognise a Hahility to make lease payinents {La, the lease liability)
and an guset representing tee dabt to use the underlylng asset during the lease ters (e, the right-of-use zsset). Lesszes will be required to
senarately recoenlse the internst paende o fhe lease Rabiliby and the deoreciation exoense on the neht-af-use aset.

The Campany i evaluating the requts ts of Il AS 216 and its effect on the financial statements

37 Addittenal Information iequired in teemis of Housing Firante Lompanies - Corporste Govarnanca {Natlonal Houslng Bank) Otrectinng, 2018
NHB{NO/DRSREG/MCQ7/I018, 02 July, 2018 have been preparet! on the basis of previous GAAP pursuant to the NHB circular no. NHE
{NDIORS/Palicy circular 50 89/2017-18 dated Jung 14, 2018 s grvan In annaxura-1, which have been presonted soolily based on the information
romptled by the management.

38 The Supremte Court has recently, delivered its ruling oo U composition of basic wages for the purposes of deduction and contribution ta the
Employees Pravident Fund and Pension Funds. The Company, In the interest of its employess, awaits chieity ob the zompicsities revabving
around tha agtlication of the said order, the amblgulty reflected by the divergent views of the lagal experts and the respanse/dlrection from the
authorities, lncluding rearesentations made by anindustry association In this regard,

19 Fairvalues
The management has dssessed that the fair value of financial assets and financial Gabilities measured ot amerized cost approximates their
respectivie casying vilue due to either tha short tarm maturity of these Intruiments ar beacuse they carey market rate linked floating rate of
Interest.

A1y Fair value hlerarchy
fha campany's Investments in mutuat fund is the anly financlal asset meastred at fale value through Profit & Loss, The fair value of units held in
mutual funds are measured based on their gublished net ssset value (NAV] taking into accoust redemption and/ o any other restrictions, Such
Iestaments are classificd under Level 2.
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